
 

  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in a public 
meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or facilities should contact the City Clerk at 770-730-5600 promptly for 

assistance. The City will make reasonable accommodations for those persons.  

SANDY SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
William "Chip" Collins, Chair 

Andy Bauman, Vice Chair 
Toshia Battle 
Hardy Dorsey 
Joe Houseman 

Sunny Park 
Ed Ukaonu 

 
Tuesday, July 29, 2025                                Special Called Meeting 8:00 AM 

 
The Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting will be held in the Barfield Conference Room, 2nd Floor, at 

Sandy Springs City Hall (1 Galambos Way, Sandy Springs, GA 30328). 
 

Live-stream: www.SandySpringsGA.gov/Stream  
 
 Call to Order 
     

Roll Call - Secretary 
    
 Approval of Meeting Agenda 
    
 Approval of Meeting Minutes 
    
  

 
DA2025-10 June 5, 2025 Development Authority Meeting Minutes 

        
 New Business 
    

  

 
DA2025-11 Authorize Execution of Legal Documentation by and between 6150 Sandy 

Springs Owner, LLC (the Developer of the Hillcrest Mixed-Use Project at 
6150 Sandy Springs Circle) and the Sandy Springs Development Authority 
Pertaining to the Construction of 111 Parking Spaces for the City of Sandy 
Springs Public Facilities Authority and the Issuance of a Property Tax 
Abatement Program Associated Therewith 

      (Presented by Chris Burnett, Director of Economic Development) 
        
 Adjournment 
    

 

Page 1 of 18

http://www.sandyspringsga.gov/Stream


Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 1 of 10 
City of Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting was held on Thursday, June 5, 2025 at 8:30 a.m., 
Chair Chip Collins presiding. 
 
I. Call to Order 
 
Chair Chip Collins called the meeting to order at 8:36 a.m.  
  
II. Roll Call  
 
Members Present: Chair Chip Collins, Vice Chair Andy Bauman, Member Hardy Dorsey, Member Toshia 
Battle, Member Ed Ukaonu (attended by Zoom), Member Joe Housemen (attended by Zoom) 
 
Members Absent: Member Sunny Park 
 
Staff Present: Chris Burnett, Director of Economic Development, Madison Melton, Economic 
Development Specialist, Kristin Byars Smith, Assistant City Manager, Raquel González, City Clerk, Nathifa 
Cunningham, Assistant City Clerk 
 
Guest Present: James (Jim) Woodward, Partner, Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP, Benjamin Price, 
Attorney, Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP 
 
III. Approval of Meeting Agenda 
   
Motion and vote. A motion was made by Member Hardy Dorsey, seconded by Member Toshia Battle 
to approve the meeting agenda. The motion carried by unanimous vote. 
  
IV. Approval of Meeting Minutes  

  
 

DA2025-08 January 9, 2025 Development Authority Annual Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion and vote. A motion was made by Member Hardy Dorsey, seconded by Member Toshia Battle, to 
approve the January 9, 2025 Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting Minutes. The motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 
  
V. New Business 

 

DA2025-09   A Review of a Tax Abatement Proposal for the Trammell Crow Company, 
through its entity, 6150 Sandy Springs Owners, LLC, Related to a New 
Mixed-use Residential/Retail Development on the corner of Mt. Vernon Hwy. 
and Sandy Springs Circle. 
 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said this new project is a mixed-use development by 
Trammell Crow Residential in partnership with Third & Urban and, for decades the site was owned by the 
Sandy Springs Methodist Church. It is in the shadow of City Springs and is on the southwest corner of the 
intersection of Mount Vernon and Sandy Springs Circle. The site is 80.1 acres of principally residential 
which includes three hundred sixty two multi-family units, thirty town homes and eighteen thousand square 
feet of retail and restaurant space.  
   

Page 2 of 18



Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 2 of 10 

 

Vice Chair Andy Bauman asked are these all rentals? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said yes. It is an all rental community and there is not a for 
sale component of this development. 

Chair Chip Collins asked for an orientation of the streets around the site.  

Director of Economic Development Burnett said this rendering shows Sandy Springs Circle southbound 
towards Hammond. 

Chair Chip Collins asked is the street at the bottom Sandy Springs Circle? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said correct. To the right is the intersection of Melbourne.  

Chair Chip Collins asked is that a new street going through and relatively an entrance to the parking lot?  

Director of Economic Development Burnett said it will become a pass through road through the 
development that will be directly in front of where Hilderbrand comes into Sandy Springs Circle. It will go 
through the site and come out on Mount Vernon where the current driveway for the church comes out. This 
presentation today is an abatement for a portion of the parking that will be for City use. 

Member Hardy Dorsey asked is there a mixture of people who have lots of means and people having 
difficulty paying their bills? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said this is a market rate deal. Given construction costs and 
interest rates, these will be about $3.00 per square foot.  That is not considered affordable housing. 

Vice Chair Bauman asked is that all stick building? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said yes. It will be stick-built over two stories of concrete 
on either side.  

Vice Chair Bauman said we have had no say in this. 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said that is correct.  It has been negotiations between the 
church. They have tried to sell the land since 2016. There were discussions with their congregation then 
about monetizing the land. The church was already experiencing a downward trend in membership, tithes 
and offerings that was exacerbated by COVID.  Churches with real estate assets like this are now converting 

Page 3 of 18



Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 3 of 10 
those into cash that will go into endowment funds to help sustain their church operations or be used to build 
new facilities or renovate facilities.  

Vice Chair Bauman said it is privately financed but it is equity and then debt other than this piece is all 
private. 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said that is correct. It is traditionally financed and probably 
a 60/40 split of a sixty percent senior debt provided by a bank and forty percent provided by an equity 
partner. One reason development is slow is because we still have challenges in the financial markets to be 
able to secure the debt and capital required to do a project like. This speaks well to the quality of 
development and developers and their capacity to raise debt and equity in a tight financial market. 

Chair Chip Collins said this body is able to use the tax abatement to encourage and induce development 
that might not otherwise occur. Someone may ask why do we need to give them any breaks to encourage 
development of the site as this is one of the most prime piece of real estate in Sandy Springs? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said this is because of the parking that the City is given for 
this transaction. Currently, there are one hundred and five surface parking spaces part of the Hitson Center. 
That is available for City use during events for example concerts. When the City Springs Theatre Company 
has a sold out show, the deck is full. That will be at least fifty or sixty nights a year plus the other events 
that occur but those spaces will be gone.  

At a luncheon months ago, Vice Chair Bauman raised the topic that with the City’s surface spaces going 
away, because of the redevelopment site, would it be possible for us to consider city spaces in the garage. 
This requires an expansion because of four hundred forty spaces that were originally for development. They 
considered it and said yes they could add city parking. Once they confirmed they could make parking 
available for our use, we discussed how to structure and fund it. Tax abatement is specific only to the one 
hundred eleven spaces that would be city spaces, which is why it is being abated to create an asset for the 
citizens of Sandy Springs to use for parking events. 

Vice Chair Bauman said one purpose of this meeting was parking. The City has seen parking at 
extraordinarily high numbers and needs more parking for events. When these additional spaces are 
developed, every study has shown the City is under-parked. We saw about $40,000 to $50,000 per space 
and they are already building a deck on a bigger property and, more spaces than the City was going to build. 
For obvious reasons, the price per space compared to what the City will have to pay is lower. Concern of 
Council include having more incentives for affordable components of these projects and affordable housing. 
We hoped those town home would be for sale. Are they not getting every unit of density out of this that 
they could and this is just a project they want to build? 

Assistant City Manager Byars Smith said yes. 

Vice Chair Bauman said we also discussed considering more density and include some potentially 
affordable housing but this project was happening. This was a good way for the City to replace the parking 
that was going to be lost. Director of Economic Development Burnett, Dan Lee, City Attorney, and 
their teams have done a great job coming up with a pilot program to do this. The good news is we address 
the parking at less cost. Using the tool of the Development Authority means that economically the City gets 
a great deal on additional parking at fifteen cents on the dollar.  

Page 4 of 18



Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 4 of 10 
Chair Chip Collins said the deck will be closer to where we are now and people will use it. 

Vice Chair Bauman said there may not have been initial universal agreement to do this and there was 
some resistance but they used their collective minds. It is close to Heritage and at some point we want to 
develop other parcels across the street. Whatever number we need, you can reduce one hundred ten from 
that calculation we were to build one hundred cents on the dollar for about $40,000 per space. 

Chair Chip Collins asked would these spaces serve the retail in this site? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said these spaces are in addition to the four hundred plus 
spaces that were going to be built to serve the residential. They are adding one hundred eleven extra spaces 
for the City. During any City event, we will have exclusive rights to those spaces. We can go through this 
and we discuss the letter of intent. 

 

Letter of Intent 

• Tri-party agreement between the Property Owner (Trammell Crow’s subsidiary entity), the Development 
Authority and the City, intended to summarize the non-binding understanding of the business terms 

• Stipulates 111 parking spaces would be designated for City use through a parking easement agreement, 
with approximate terms as follow: 

• First two hours free for project patrons and City Event patrons, unless designated as event parking rate 

• Revenue for City spaces shall be paid to the City 

• City obligated to fund pro rata garage expenses and capital expenditures related to the garage based on 
City’s percentage of the total parking spaces 

• Third-party parking management company to aide in operations and revenue collections/disbursements. 
City will pay for event parking staff 

• Owner’s right to redevelop the Parking Facility after 50 years if City has received, whether in Parking 
Revenue or otherwise pursuant to the City MOA, at least 200% of the hard costs associated with Owner’s 
construction of the City Spaces (such 200% amount being the “Buyout Amount” of $6,624,000) 

Vice Chair Bauman said it runs with the land if they sell it the City still has an agreement. 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said that is correct. It runs with the land. Even if they sell 
the project, the City’s fifty year agreement continues.  

Vice Chair Bauman asked does that come to the Development Authority, Public Facilities Authority 
(PFA), or the City? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said it may be the PFA. 

Jim Woodward, Partner, Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP, said the tax incentive will be reviewed first 
on my side and that is what is being voted on today. Then there will be a second agreement between the 

Page 5 of 18



Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 5 of 10 
City, Development Authority, and Trammell Crow. That is payments back over a term of years. The parking 
agreement will be finalized in the next few weeks. 

Member Toshia Battle asked is the current parking used for City events, Staff, or any other day? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said there is little usage in a normal work day. There is  
plenty parking in the deck for all City employees in this building. With most of the retail trade there is a 
shortage on Friday and Saturday night and especially with a sold out show. 

Vice Chair Bauman asked are volunteers also parking there? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said yes. 

Member Toshia Battle asked when there is no large event, can the spaces be used for this development as 
well including restaurant overflow and residential? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said yes if nothing were happening at the City but, under 
permitting requirements they must have adequate spaces to park their residents. 

Vice Chair Bauman said these were not spaces they were planning to build. It was only the suggestion of 
the City that we add to the spaces that they were planning to build. 

Chair Chip Collins said we cannot stop them. If someone there has a guest for the weekend and they want 
to pay, we will take the money. The same with restaurants. Director of Economic Development Burnett 
is there a similar arrangement with our deck now? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said the apartments have their dedicated spaces. They may 
pay the City for those spaces. 

Assistant City Manager Byars Smith said that information is not available now. 

Dan Lee, City Attorney, said they do not pay for the spaces but we have a covenant with them as with any 
property owner to share in the common maintenance of the different areas. It is the reverse of what we are 
proposing with the church. It is the same sort of rule for designated parking places but there will be some 
common maintenance issues. In this discussion of parking policies, we are acting as a property owner but, 
when the deal is done we will be back being a city.  

Chair Chip Collins asked have there been any issues with the share arrangement with this deck? 

City Attorney Lee said no. 

 

Letter of Intent 

• Owner has ability to pay the difference between the Buyout Amount and actual recouped amount to 
terminate the Parking Easement 

• Development Agreement 

Page 6 of 18



Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 6 of 10 

• Owner would be entitled to receive a development fee of 3.5% of the hard costs of constructing the   
City Spaces and any related Infrastructure Improvements, if such Infrastructure Improvements are 
developed by the Owner 

• In no event shall City Costs exceed $4,877,333. City Costs include: 

•  Hard costs to pay for the construction of the City Spaces (to be finalized at GMP) 

•  All costs associated with the Infrastructure Improvements 

•  Soft costs associated with the transaction contemplated herein, estimates outlined below (and any 
other typically incurred as part of similar market transactions): 

 

Director of Economic Development Burnett continued to say this property is currently not on the tax 
digest since it is owned by the church nonprofit organization and is exempt from property taxes. It will be 
under Fulton County and the City of Sandy Springs. In estimating the property taxes, we used data from 
Ashton Springs, the apartments here at City Springs. We put some value increase due to cost increases. 

 

 

Vice Chair Bauman asked is it correct this is all the City’s discretion?  

Director of Economic Development Burnett said correct. 

Vice Chair Bauman said under the City’s development code, none of the infrastructure work was ever 
going to be on their side to do. This is all the City’s discretionary work. We are taking advantage of this 
deal and this structure that we are now doing to fund discretionary infrastructure improvements close to a 
million dollars because we are adding it on to this particular deal at about fifteen cents on the dollar. Is that 
right? 

Assistant City Manager Smith said for anything they are required to do, they will conduct a traffic study 
as part of their lane disturbance permit and anything they are required to do from an infrastructure 
perspective will be included in that. 

Vice Chair Bauman asked on their side? 

Page 7 of 18



Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 7 of 10 
Assistant City Manager Smith said yes at their own cost. This would be above and beyond anything that 
is required. 

Vice Chair Bauman asked that we want? 

Assistant City Manager Smith said correct. 

City Attorney Lee said when the City is involved in a deal like this, we must be careful. Included in this 
development, at least one street will be added and those will be controlled by the permitting office.  

Director of Economic Development Burnett said there have been discussions to make downtown safer, 
more walkable and bikeable, and more beautification initiatives so people realize they are coming into City 
Springs. These dollars will help to fund all those initiatives especially the safety component. 

Chair Chip Collins asked are those attorney fees or an estimate of hourly fees? 

Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP Parter Woodward said flat fees contingent upon closing then continued 
with the presentation.  

Vice Chair Bauman asked what are they doing with the money they are saving? 

Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP Parter Woodward said as with other transactions, for the governmental 
investment, they are going to reimburse us for that. There will be a separate agreement between the City, 
this Development Authority and Trammell Crow. They agree to reimburse us for that amount and that 
amount is coming back to the City to cover the cost of parking and streetscapes and more.  

Vice Chair Bauman said the tax savings that is realized is then paid in a like amount in lieu of taxes to the 
City. Is that right? 

Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP Parter Woodward said yes. The company will agree to pay a contract 
payment back to the City. That is the structure but the original one is providing a tax incentive for the 
project. 

Chair Chip Collins said this is a mechanism that is allowing the City to incorporate needed parking in this 
project for much cheaper than we would be able to build somewhere else around here. Is that correct?  

Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP Parter Woodward said that is correct. 

Chair Chip Collins said the City will have to have and this is one way to have a win-win. What should the 
motion be? 

Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP Parter Woodward said it could be as simple as a motion to approve 
the bond resolution as presented. 

Chair Chip Collins said this will be an approval for us to do the deal. 

Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP Parter Woodward said this gives initial authorization to move forward.  

Member Toshia Battle asked for clarification on what was said about bond resolution taxes. 

Page 8 of 18



Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 8 of 10 
Gray Pannell & Woodward LLP Parter Woodward said the bond resolution as presented is the motion 
allowing us to move forward. Also the tax incentive portion which is a reduction of property taxes, 
authorizes that transaction but it is not required. 

Chair Chip Collins asked what happens if we do not approve it? Does the project still go forward but 
without the extra parking spaces? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said it does. Their project is not contingent upon the City. 

Chair Chip Collins said but the City will have to find another place to build one hundred eleven spaces. 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said that is correct.  

 

Motion and vote. A motion was made by Member Toshia Battle, seconded by Member Hardy Dorsey, 
to approve the bond resolution as presented. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

VI. 
  

Other Business  
  

Chair Chip Collins said the Development Authtority fee is going to be about $160,000 to use as deemed 
fit for the purposes of this authority. For example, we have done concerts, sponsorships and more. How 
much do we have in our account now? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said it may be about $550,000. 

Chair Chip Collins said Director of Economic Development Burnett please consider ways to use funds, 
more than just sponsorship, and might lead to some project that betters the City. This could be an event for 
developers in the community for example, or something else. 

Member Toshia Battle asked if this is approved and we have one hundred and eleven parking spaces, will 
that be enough if the City needs additional parking for all events? 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said we have discussed more than one hundred and eleven.  

Assistant City Manager Smith said this will help replace the spaces we are already using for overflow 
parking for bigger events. We do not always have to use that. It is only for large events. For massive events 
with thousands of people like Fourth of July, we do not have enough parking but at some point the City 
will need additional spaces. 

Vice Chair Bauman said if we go to redevelop the three parcels that we have, Heritage and two across the 
street, we knew we need parking and this project will subtract from district parking that we would have to 
find a way to replace it. Even if they stayed as usable green space, their proximity to that site with safe 
crossing over Sandy Springs Circle would be very helpful. The trajectory for the parking will do nothing 
but increase over time. 

Chair Chip Collins asked Assistant City Manager Smith in your field of work, is there any discussion 
on what parking looks like ten years from now? 

Page 9 of 18



Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 9 of 10 
Assistant City Manager Smith said technology changes so rapidly that it is hard to say where we will be 
and when we will be there. We anticipate parking needs to change over time. In the meantime, there will 
be parking needs here for a long time. We have made changes already so we do not have minimum parking 
standards in the same way that we used. Our development code changed over time. The parking needs are 
shifting but, not as rapidly as we might have thought a few years ago.  

Vice Chair Bauman said we are just adding to a parking deck that is being built and this is efficient. 
Councilmember Melissa Mular has discussed a façade incentive program. One challenge in Sandy 
Springs is older retail and maybe the Development Authority can get property owners to improve the looks 
of their property. The majority would be paid for by those property owners but as potentially a facade 
improvement incentive to spur redevelopment. 

Assistant City Manager Smith said we are working on design guidelines now to give a basis to create 
some façade improvement program. It is a recommendation within the City Springs Master Plan. We 
anticipate looking at this early to mid-2026. 

Vice Chair Bauman said it is a good idea to not leave money bank. 

Chair Chip Collins said especially since this will be refilled. 

Member Toshia Battle said currently we are not getting any income that the church is allowing us to park. 

Vice Chair Bauman said we are paying them a small fee. 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said we will go from paying a fee to earning. 

Member Toshia Battle asked what is that fee? 

Vice Chair Bauman said it is very small. 

Director of Economic Development Burnett said as our events continue to grow, we are doing research 
on attendance. Two big signature events, Fourth of July had over ten thousand people and Sparkle Springs 
had over six and a half thousand people. We will look at technology for accuracy in tracking attendance. 
As we continue to grow, transportation in general will continue to become an important piece of getting 
our citizens in and out as efficiently and effectively as possible. Parking is one of the components to 
continue to work on.  

Vice Chair Bauman said the infrastructure piece of this should not be understated.  That $900,000 to a 
$1,000,000, we as a city want the folks that are going to this development living in the apartments and town 
homes and the people that visit those restaurants to come here. We want them to safely come across the 
street to our events and our restaurants that are here. The goal of this district is this interconnectivity and 
that is a good add to this project to do some infrastructure improvements that would integrate the two 
properties.  We have so much going on around here. This includes the Kroger Center with lots of restaurants, 
the Brooklyn Café, then where the Trader Joe's is. What is missing is a lot of the safe connections and we 
want to get people to our restaurants and events.  

 

 

Page 10 of 18



Sandy Springs Development Authority Meeting  
Barfield Conference Room, Sandy Springs City Hall and Broadcast Via Live Webinar and Teleconference 
Thursday, June 5, 2025  
Page 10 of 10 
Member Joe Houseman said this was a great presentation and a great idea for the City of Sandy Springs. 
 

VII.  Adjournment 
 
Motion and vote. A motion was made by Member Hardy Dorsey, seconded by Member Toshia Battle, 
to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.  

 
The meeting adjourned at 9:36 a.m. 
 
 
Date approved: July 17, 2025 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ ______________________________________ 
William ‘Chip’ Collins, Chair    Raquel D. González, City Clerk 

Page 11 of 18



Page 12 of 18



Page 13 of 18



Page 14 of 18



Page 15 of 18



Page 16 of 18



Page 17 of 18



Page 18 of 18


	 Call to Order
	 Roll Call 
	 Approval of Meeting Agenda
	 Approval of Meeting Minutes
	 June 5, 2025 Development Authority Meeting Minutes
	SSDA 06052025 Meeting Minutes


	 New Business
	 Property Tax Abatement request to fund development of 111 City-owned parking spaces in the Hillcrest Mixed-Use Development at 6150 Sandy Springs Circle
	Sandy Springs Development Authority - Authority Memo


	 Adjournment

